
DRAFT AGENDA  Memb ers 
Mark Walter 
Kathy Egan 
Frank Goodroe 

Chet Janik 
Carolyn (Peachy) Rentenbach 

F. (Bud) Welch 
Karen Zemaitis 

 

Director 
Trudy Galla 

 

 
 

The LCBRA will meet Tuesday, May 17, 2016 at  10:00 am at the Government Center 

PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES 

 CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 ROLL CALL 
 CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 CONSIDERATION OF APRIL 19, 2016 Minutes pgs 2‐7 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

 DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
GTRAC Reimbursement Agreement 

 

 Consent Agenda   
Items of a routine nature to be voted on with one motion ‐ no discussion.  Upon request, members may remove any item and 
place elsewhere on the agenda, with no vote of the commission. Members will vote on remaining items on the Consent 
Agenda, after the item removed has been placed elsewhere on the agenda. 
1. AKT Peerless – Monthly update  pgs 8-9 
2. Envirologic -  EPA RLF – Leland Site  pgs 10-11 
3. Envirologic – EPA RLF Monthly Update pgs 12-13 
4. Envirologic - Brownfield Assessment Grant Monthly Update pgs 14-16 
5. Envirologic – General Consulting Monthly Update pgs 17-18 

 
REPORTS 
 1.  Executive Committee (Chair, Vice‐Chair & Secretary/Treasurer) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1.   Update on Leland Residential Site & Two Peas Site – (Jeff Hawkins) 

NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Approval to order new checks (no handout) 
 2.  Discussion on townhouses/real estate listing (no handout)  

 
FINANCIALS 
1.  Claims & Accounts – General Expenses pgs 19‐20 
 2.  Claims & Accounts – EPA Assessment Grant pgs 21‐24 
 3.  Claims & Accounts  ‐ EPA RLF Grant  pgs 25‐27 
 4.  Reimbursement to EPA – RLF/overpayment (handed out at meeting) 
 5.  Request to EPA for Grant Reimbursements  (handed out at meeting) 

 6.  Post Audit, Budget Amendments, Transfers 
 Financial Reports (sent separately) 

 CORRESPONDENCE/COMMUNICATION ITEMS 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 MEMBER COMMENTS/ CHAIRPERSON COMMENTS 
 ADJOURN 

Leelanau County 
Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority 
(LCBRA) 

Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA)
County website: www.leelanau.cc/brownfieldmtg.asp 

8527 E. Government Center Dr. Suite 108 
Suttons Bay MI 49682 

Phone: (231) 256‐9812 or Toll Free (866) 256‐9711, Ext. 6 
Fax:	(231)	256‐0174	

Page 1 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

1 
 

A regular meeting of the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was held on Tuesday, 
April 19, 2016 at the Government Center. 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 10:45 am by Chairman Walter who led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Roll Call 
Members Present:  M. Walter, K. Egan, F. Goodroe, C. Janik, C. Rentenbach, K. Zemaitis, B. Welch 
 
Staff Present:    T. Galla, Director 
 
Public Present:    Jeff Hawkins, Dan Wells, Melissa Witkowski, Ty Wessell, Bruce Price 
  
Consideration of Agenda 
Galla noted #3 under New Business, Work Order from Envirologic Technologies and #4 Request for 
submittal of all the reports to EPA, and to DEQ.  Handed out are the reimbursements for #4 and #5 
under financials (no addition, already listed on the agenda). 
 
Motion by Egan, seconded by Rentenbach to accept the agenda as amended.  Motion carried 7‐0. 
 
Conflict of Interest – None 
 
Consideration of March 15 2016 minutes 
Motion by Egan, seconded by Zemaitis to accept the minutes as presented.  Motion carried 7‐0. 
 
Public comment  
Dan Wells, AKT Peerless, introduced himself and briefly discussed the programs he has been involved in 
with regard to brownfields. 
     
Consent Agenda 
Motion by Egan, seconded by Janik to accept the consent agenda as presented.  Carried 7‐0. 
 
Executive Committee Report – Walter reported they met and went over the Developer Reimbursement 
Agreement and committal of funds of half of the 20% match required for the RLF.   
 
Unfinished Business – update on Leland Residential site (Jeff Hawkins) 
Hawkins stated a lot of the report is in the consent agenda.  They have been moving forward and based 
on the information from the survey and interaction with MDEQ, can demonstrate we do not need a joint 
permit with DEQ and Corps of Engineers.  They will work with Steve Christiansen for local permits.  Still 
finalizing that but will be submitted to Christiansen for review; as well as submitted to the DEQ. They 
have to look at it and concur no joint permit is required.  The section 106 Historical review (SHPO) is 
under review and they were hopeful they would have an answer by now because a response from the 
state was due last Friday and they have not heard from them yet.  Basically gone thru all public 
comment that is required.  A sign will be displayed at the site and it was done on canvas material.  It will 
be put on a post and states it is a project funded through the EPA.   Act 381 work plan is the tool to get 
approval of activities and the draft was submitted to MDEQ and they received almost immediate 
feedback from Susan Wenzlick.  Wenzlick has been involved with this site since the beginning and is very 
familiar with it, as well as Brian Flickinger from the DEQ.  Hawkins stated he has responded to the DEQ.  

Page 2 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

2 
 

Based on their feedback, they should get approval of the 381 Work Plan very soon.   They are also in the 
process of details for EPA on handling the dirt and doing some verification samples to satisfy the quality 
assurance project plan (QAPP) that they have. Bid specs and documentation are under review right now 
and should go out soon.  They coordinated with Janik for the location of the basement soils that will 
come from development of the homes, and that was presented at last week’s meeting of the County 
Board, and will be on their agenda at tonight’s meeting for action.    There was always questions of what 
would be done with soils that come off the site and our recommendation was this could be a legacy 
issue for county going down the road even though it is considered clean material.  Corporate Counsel 
also agreed it would be better if we could control the location of the soil deposition.  Janik stated the 
location is Pit Road where tower is owned by the county, and it is fenced off and gated plus there are 
some spots that need fill.  Also, it is close to Leland so it is a good location.  Steve Christiansen looked at 
it and had no issues with it.  The site is good for everyone and close to Leland so it should keep cost 
down.  Need County Board approval to use it, so hopefully that happens at tonight’s meeting.   
 
Hawkins noted they were a little behind schedule but coming back up on the schedule now.  They would 
like to get cleanup done before the busy summer season starts.  
 
Rentenbach asked if there was anything stored on the property at this time.   Janik stated the fire station 
has some building supplies on the site.  The fire chief asked if they could do that on a temporary basis.  
Rentenbach asked if there was any potential for contamination from the materials and Hawkins said, no.  
Janik added the fire department would be willing to move it at any time.  Zemaitis felt it was not a very 
good look for the property right now.  But at close of business each day, the site is very neat and 
covered up.  Hawkins felt the site was probably fine but would swing by today and take a look at it.   
 
New Business 
 
1.  Request by Treasurer – Signer on Bank Account 

  
Rentenbach commented that she was more comfortable with separation and not having the 
Treasurer on our bank account.  Walter added this has never been an issue before. 
 
Goodroe questioned if this was for the Land Bank, instead of the Brownfield and Walter replied that 
the Treasurer is already on the Land Bank account as a signer.  Walter referenced the email that was 
sent by the Treasurer.   
 
Janik noted the auditor is not requiring Treasurer be on the account, it would be an internal 
decision.  Janik also stated when we met with EPA regarding eligibility of the Leland site for the RLF, 
it was a big concern of the EPA that the Brownfield Authority was totally separate from the county.  
Janik did not want this to become an issue of whether there is separation or not.    
 
Egan was not comfortable with someone not on the Brownfield Authority being on the account.  We 
have had this on the agenda 2 months now for this benefit, once he was not here and we added it to 
the agenda the next month and he is not here again.   If he wants to request this, he can come back 
and explain it. 
 
It was moved by Goodroe, seconded by Welch, to deny the request for the Treasurer to be added 
to the bank account, and leave the account as is.   

       

Page 3 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

3 
 

Zemaitis didn’t feel it was an unusual request and could understand possible a reason for it if 
members are not available and Galla is not in the office and can’t answer questions.  Auditors can’t 
just call up and ask for information and get it.  It delays the process.  She could see where it could be 
helpful, but also of the opinion that it is to keep it within our own authority.  It is kind of a balancing 
act of making it the most workable and expedient and keeping it safe and secure. Part of that goes 
to our trust we have with our Treasurer’s department which we have never had a problem with, 
working with the people involved.  She found it hard to make a decision without having all the 
information.  She would rather not totally take it off the table and if Treasurer really wants to pursue 
it, have him come back.    
 
Janik said if the motion passes it does not preclude the Treasurer from coming back and we could 
always change the decision.   Janik felt Zemaitis had valid points, but he hasn’t been here in several 
months to present this to us.  And he also appreciated Egan’s comment that people on the account 
should be on the board.   We haven’t had an issue and auditors are not requiring this. 
   
On a voice vote, the motion carried 7‐0. 
 
Janik clarified that signers on the account now are Walter and Zemaitis.  Goodroe asked about the 
Secretary position and it was noted that Galla acts as secretary for the Brownfield, but does not 
have that title.   
 

2. Review of Community Outreach materials for Assessment Grant 
Hawkins reviewed the dashboard on page 18, and 3 year plan on page 19. 
Hawkins stated this is a resource and is being tied to the quarterly reports that are completed by 
Michigan Association of Counties and Director Galla.   
 
Hawkins commented on meetings that he and Galla would be attending with some of the 
communities and organizations that had supported the assessment grant application.  These will be 
face to face meetings with members of the community.  This gives them a chance to sit down and 
explain redevelopment and economic development in their communities.   
 
Janik asked about the information on the flyers with regard to jobs created and jobs retained.  
Hawkins said when applications are sent to the Brownfield for assistance, they estimate these 
number and we have to rely on the information in the applications.  Hawkins said information on 
the flyers will be modified and will include data from previous EPA grants.  Goodroe asked about the 
status of the drycleaner property in Suttons Bay.  Hawkins replied that they did Phase I and 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) on the property and identified conditions based on previous 
work.  They did not do soil samples, per se, but identified concerns of vapor containment.  There are 
levels below slab of the surface that poses concerns for indoor air.  As an authority, you approved 
work all the way through a Brownfield Plan and Act 381 work plan.  The Phase I, Phase II, and due 
care plan are done.   As part of moving forward with occupancy of the building, our 
recommendation is a system to handle the vapors.  There are several extraction points below the 
floor slab and pump that will create negative pressure and draw out vapors and emit them to 
atmosphere. It short circuits from entering the building.  There is a Work Order to present today to 
do the system design and testing, not the installation of the system – but the testing to accurately 
size it.  
 

Page 4 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

4 
 

Goodroe asked if the buyer was willing to do these modifications and Hawkins replied that according 
to discussions, he is proceeding and hoping to get some funds from the Brownfield for additional 
work on the site.  Cost of installation could be $20‐$30,000. 
 
Egan asked if the evaluation of what kind of system to install would be under assessment grant, but 
cleanup or purchase or installation of the system would not be?  Hawkins said that was correct.  
There is a potential to use the RLF fund, but if cost are in the range of $20‐$30,000, not sure you will 
want to go through all the effort to use the RLF, because it is too low.  But, it is something to 
consider.  
 

3. Work Order 
Hawkins reviewed the Work Order which was handed out.   He referred to page 14 of the agenda 
packet and noted the total Envirologic contract remaining is $8,458.75.  Total for community 
outreach is $15,000 and you have only approved $6,000 of that amount.  So, there would be 
potential there for use of some of those funds. 
 
Galla noted there is also some flexibility for contractual amounts as not all the contractual amounts 
were put into contracts with AKT or Envirologic.  The Brownfield authority held some of that back.   
Egan asked about the community outreach amount and Galla said all community outreach was given 
to Envirologic.  Community outreach is required as part of the grant.  She would have to check to 
see if there are community outreach funds left to use.   
 
Hawkins noted it would be nice to have the buyer (Tom Krause) here today but he knows he is busy 
trying to get things completed and hoped to get the building open and operating for the summer.  
Zemaitis commented he is moving quickly but he has people wanting to lease space.  He only has 1 
other space to lease in the building.  Hawkins anticipated the sub slab system to install is primarily 
involved in the east end of the business, not the full business.    
 
Egan asked if he is still planning a Brownfield plan.  Hawkins felt from the Brownfield Authority’s 
position, it was your intent to put a Brownfield Plan on the site.  Hawkins was not sure what other 
eligible costs the buyer might have, other than what has been provided by the Brownfield authority.  
If the buyer incurs costs totally on his own, those are costs he can incur under a Brownfield plan.  
 
Egan commented on the 10% part of the project cost and felt 10% across the board is the right 
approach.  It must be for the full project cost, not just the 1st work order on the project.   
 
It was moved by Egan, seconded by Janik, to accept the Work Order from Envirologic Technologies 
in amount not to exceed $8,500 with the condition that the application pay the 10% of the $8,500 
prior to getting any reports issued.   
 
Hawkins believed the buyer had closed on the property already and would be considered the owner.  
If we are going to look at a Brownfield plan, we don’t want to wait until the end of the year as new 
taxable value will change and need to get that done soon.   
 
Walter asked if we need to have a discussion with the buyer on doing a Brownfield plan and 
Hawkins said that technically you don’t need to – it’s your call.  Walter felt it was logical to have that 
discussion.   
 

Page 5 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

5 
 

On a voice vote, the motion carried 7‐0. 
  

4. Reports to EPA and DEQ 
Galla explained that she submits reports to EPA for the grants, after collaborating with Gabriel 
Zawadzki of MAC.  She would like action that re‐asserts she is to continue submitting these reports 
on behalf of the LCBRA, to EPA, as well as submittal of reports to the DEQ for the loan on the Leland 
property. 
 
It was moved by Rentenbach, seconded by Janik, to authorize Director Galla to continue 
submitting reports to the EPA for all grants, on behalf of the LCBRA.   
On a voice vote, the motion carried 7‐0. 
 
It was moved by Rentenbach, seconded by Janik, to authorize Director Galla to continue submittal 
of all reports to the state, as required.  On a voice vote, the motion carried 7‐0. 
  
Claims & Accounts 
 
Galla stated she prepared Claims & Accounts differently, with 3 separate documents for easier 
tracking going forward.  One for the assessment grants, one for the RLF, and one for everything else.   
 
It was moved by Rentenbach, seconded by Egan to approve Claims & Accounts for the RLF in the 
amount of $13,695.50.  Motion carried 7‐0. 
 
It was moved by Goodroe, seconded by Egan, to approve Claims & Accounts for the Assessment 
Grant in the amount of $2,015.00.  Motion carried 7‐0. 
 
It was moved by Egan, seconded by Goodroe, to pay Claims & Accounts in the amount of $229.66.  
Motion carried 7‐0.  

 
 

Reimbursement Requests to EPA: 
Galla noted there were 3 requests to approve for reimbursement from the EPA:  2 from Claims & 
Accounts that were approved today.  The 3rd goes back to previous Claims & Accounts.  Galla 
explained that there was an error detected from an earlier Reimbursement Request in which the 
funds were incorrectly allocated to petroleum funds of the RLF, instead of hazardous substances 
funds of the RLF.  That ultimately resulted in drawing down too many funds. To correct that, MAC 
contacted EPA and was told that it should be returned.  So, approval of a check going back to EPA 
needs to be done, and then the past funds we did not draw down because of this error, need to be 
drawn down.  That puts us track with all our funds and our reports.   
 
It was moved by Goodroe, seconded by Zemaitis, to approve Reimbursement Request #8 in the 
amount of $2,015 for the assessment grant.  Motion carried 7‐0.   
 
It was moved by Goodroe, seconded by Zemaitis, to approve Reimbursement Request #22 in the 
amount of $1,676.88 for the RLF grant.  Motion carried 7‐0. 
 
It was moved by Goodroe, seconded by Zemaitis to remit $14,510.52 to EPA for overpayment on 
the RLF.  Motion carried 7‐0. 

Page 6 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 

6 
 

It was moved by Zemaitis, seconded by Goodroe, to approve Reimbursement Request #23 in the 
amount of $13,695.50 for the RLF grant.  Motion carried 7‐0.   
 
Public Comment ‐ none 
Director Comment –none 
 
Member Comments 
Goodroe asked if there were projects that were actively being worked on and Galla commented on 
the meetings that are being held in the communities to generate interest and projects.  She has 
fielded phone calls and emails, and mailed out applications, as well.   
 
Zemaitis welcomed Dan Wells from AKT Peerless. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion by Janik, seconded by Welch to adjourn.  Meeting adjourned at 11:50 am. 

    

Page 7 of 27 LCBRA Packet



25 Ionia Avenue SW, Ste 506 
Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49503 

T (616) 608-0229 
www.aktpeerless.com 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Trudy Galla, AICP, Director 

Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

From:  Dan Wells 

Subject: EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant Status Report 

Date:  May 3, 2016 

This memorandum serves to provide an update as to the current status and activities under 
consideration for the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) under its EPA 
Brownfield Assessment Grant, EPA Cooperative Agreement Number BF-00E01409. 

No activities are under consideration for the LCBRA under its EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant at this 
time. 

ATTACHED WITH THIS MEMORANDUM IS A BUDGET AND COST SUMMARY FOR THE EPA ASSESSMENT 
GRANT. 

Attachment 

Page 8 of 27 LCBRA Packet

http://www.aktpeerless.com/


LCBRA EPA BROWNFIELD ASSESSMENT GRANT
Monthly Project Update

Budget and Cost Summary
As Of May 3, 2016

Project Project Project
Budget Invoices for Budget Budget Project

Consideration Expended1 Remaining Notes
Leelanau County

File
Number

Work
Order

Work Plan
Task

Work Plan
Status Proposal Project Project/Site Name Scope of Work

AKT Peerless Contract Amount 127,400.00$          

NA 2014-17 Task #2 Executed PB-16709 6159L EPA Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) EPA Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) 1,000.00$              1,000.00$            -$                   Complete and Approved by EPA

Hazardous Substances Assessment Grant Totals -$                      1,000.00$            -$                   

NA 2014-17 Task #2 Executed PB-16709 6159L EPA Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) EPA Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) 1,000.00$              1,000.00$            -$                   Complete and Approved by EPA
TBD 2015-03 Task #1 Executed PB-17389 10253B 1408 S West Bay Shore Dr., Suttons Bay Phase I ESA 2,400.00$              2,400.00$            -$                   Complete
TBD 2015-04 Task #2 Executed PB-17513 10253B 1408 S West Bay Shore Dr., Suttons Bay Phase II ESA 16,265.00$            13,310.12$          16,233.87$          31.13$               Complete

-$                   
Petroleum Assessment Grant Totals 13,310.12$          19,633.87$          31.13$               

20,633.87$          
31.13$                 

106,735.00$       
127,400.00$       

Notes:
1. Budget Expended includes "Invoices for Consideration" amount.

Reference Numbers

AKT/LCBRA Contract Budget Remaining - Committed
Project Budget Funds Expended

COMBINED GRANT BUDGET SUMMARY
FY2014 EPA Cooperative Agreement No. BF-00E01409
LCBRA/AKT Professional Services Agreement, December 15, 2014

PETROLEUM ASSESSMENT GRANT

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES ASSESSMENT GRANT

AKT/LCBRA Contract Budget Remaining - Uncommitted

AKT Peerless

Prepared by AKT Peerless

LCBRA Brownfield Assessment Grant
Status report
May 3, 2016

2 of 2

Page 9 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 
 

TO:  TRUDY J. GALLA, AICP, DIRECTOR, LEELANAU COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

FROM: JEFF HAWKINS 

SUBJECT: EPA RLF CLEANUP LOAN MONTHLY UPDATES AND INVOICES 
 FORMER LEELANAU COUNTY GOVERNMENT COMPLEX REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
DATE: MAY 17, 2016 
This memorandum serves to provide information regarding invoices and updates that are being 
presented to the LCBRA for services rendered on the EPA RLF Cleanup Loan activities. 
 
Please find attached several items for your consideration: 
 
1. Former Leelanau County Government Complex Cleanup Loan (W.O. #20): 

• Legal Survey and Elevation Data including OHWM 
• Project Management, Oversight, and Professional Services (as detailed in W.O. #20 and 

ABCA) 
• Verification of Soil Remediation (VSR) Sampling 
• Documentation of Due Care Compliance (DDCC) 

 
Update: 
The final Draft Act 381 Work Plan has been submitted to MDEQ. It is the understanding of 
Envirologic that the MDEQ has approved the Act 381 Work Plan with written documentation of the 
approval forthcoming. 
 
The Leelanau County Conservation District (Mr. Steve Christiansen) has reviewed and approved the 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) permit.  The SESC permit will be issued by the 
Conservation District upon identification of the contractor that will be performing the remedial 
excavation work. 
 
Ms. Robyn Schmidt of the MDEQ has reviewed the SESC permit and provided a response 
documenting that a Joint Permit from the MDEQ will not be necessary.  The lack of need for a MDEQ 
Joint Permit is based upon limiting the extent of the remedial excavations to areas/elevations 
beyond the identified Ordinary High Water (OHW) mark, 100-year flood plain elevation, and 
delineated wetland areas.  Limiting the extent of the remedial excavations will result in select areas 
of identified impact along the Leland River not being addressed through the soil removal.  Envirologic 
intends to address this issue by conducting additional ISM soil sampling in these areas with the hope 
of receiving analytical results demonstrating no exceedances of Part 201 Residential cleanup criteria.  
If satisfactory ISM results cannot be obtained, an alternative mechanism to address “due care” 
within the limited areas beyond the excavations will be necessary.  
 
SHPO has completed their review of the Section 106 Application and on April 26, 2016 issued a 
written determination that the proposed remedial action will not have an adverse effect on historic 
resources.  
 
On April 19, 2016, Jeff Hawkins with Envirologic presented information regarding the placement of 
future excess home construction basement soils at the County owned antenna site. The Board of 
Commissioners approved the utilization of this land for this purpose.  
 
Bid Specifications and Contract documents have been prepared for release. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
Invoice #02280 ($10,579.35) RLF Hazardous Grant  
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM  

Page 10 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
EPA RLF Cleanup Loan Budget 

Former Leelanau County Government Complex
Environmental Consulting Services

Monthly Project Update

Budget and Cost Summary

5/17/16
Page 1 of 1

LCBRA
File # W/O Project

20 160088 Former Government Center RLF Cleanup

Legal Survey and Elevation Data 10,000.00     02152 4/7/2016 3,253.00$        3,253.00$        6,747.00$    
02280* 5/12/2016 3,835.00$        7,088.00$        2,912.00$    

Estimated Project Subtotal 10,000.00     

Project Mgmt., Oversight and Prof. Services 57,740.00     02077 3/7/2016 5,200.75$        5,200.75$        52,539.25$  
02152 4/7/2016 10,442.50$      15,643.25$      42,096.75$  

02280* 5/12/2016 6,744.35$        22,387.60$      35,352.40$  

Estimated Project Subtotal 57,740.00     

Verification of Soil Remediation (VSR) Sampling 15,000.00     

Estimated Project Subtotal 15,000.00     

Documentation of Due Care Compliance 5,000.00       

Estimated Project Subtotal 5,000.00       

Total W.O. 20 87,740.00     

General Updates:

Envirologic
Site/Phase

 Budget 
Estimate  Invoice # 

 Invoices for 
Consideration 

Budget1 

Expended

Budget 
Remaining

Task 
Completed 

1. Budget Expended includes "Invoices for Consideration" amount.

 Invoice 
Date 

Page 11 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 
 

TO:  TRUDY J. GALLA, AICP, DIRECTOR, LEELANAU COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

FROM: JEFF HAWKINS 

SUBJECT: EPA RLF GRANT CONSULTING MONTHLY UPDATES AND INVOICES 

DATE: MAY 17, 2016 
This memorandum serves to provide information regarding invoices and updates that are being 
presented to the LCBRA for services rendered on various projects related to General Environmental 
Consulting activities. 
 
Please find attached several items for your consideration: 
 
1. Former Leelanau County Government Complex – RLF Eligibility (W.O. #13) 

 
Update: 
There were no activities this month related to RLF Eligibility. The site is eligible for use of RLF funds. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration this month. 
  

2. RLF Loan Selection for Potential Projects (W.O. #14) 
 
Update: 
There were no activities related to RLF Loan Selection this month. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration. 
 

3. Leland Residential Site Preliminary BCRLF Planning  (W.O.#16) 
 

Update: 
There were no activities related to this Work Order this month. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration. 
 

4. Traverse City  Housing Commission Site (W.O. #17) 
 

Update: 
Envirologic and Trudy Galla met with Tony Lentych Director of the TCHC on January 19, 2016. We 
reviewed the previous investigations to-date, plans for future construction and how the RLF and/or 
Assessment Grant might be able to assist with the project. Envirologic will be reviewing the original 
application and also communicating with the MDEQ to determine if there might be additional 
funding that could be accessed to leverage some of the Assessment Grant funds. There have been no 
activities related to this site this month. Envirologic is working to determine if there may be an 
opportunity to leverage MDEQ Site Specific Brownfield Assessment funds with the 2014 EPA 
Brownfield Assessment Grant to further assess the contaminant situation at the site. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration this month. 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM  

Page 12 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
EPA RLF 10%/Oversight Budgets

Environmental Consulting Services
Monthly Project Update

Budget and Cost Summary

5/17/16
Page 1 of 1

LCBRA
File # W/O Project

13 140292 Former Government Center RLF Eligibility 1,500.00       00200 8/5/2014 543.75$           543.75$           956.25$       
00452 10/15/2014 140.00$           683.75$           816.25$       
00733 1/13/2015 190.00$           873.75$           626.25$       
00800 2/9/2015 237.50$           1,111.25$        388.75$       
01327 7/16/2015 90.00$              1,201.25$        298.75$       

14 140290 RLF Loan Selection - 10% Fund Allocation 6,000.00       00222 8/6/2014 140.00$           140.00$           5,860.00$    
00454 10/15/2014 175.00$           315.00$           5,685.00$    
00480 11/4/2014 1,223.75$        1,538.75$        4,146.25$    
00734 1/13/2015 345.00$           1,883.75$        4,116.25$    
00801 2/9/2015 520.00$           2,403.75$        3,596.25$    
01012 4/15/2015 515.00$           2,918.75$        3,081.25$    
01096 5/14/2015 1,632.50$        4,551.25$        1,448.75$    
01319 7/15/2015 190.00$           4,741.25$        1,258.75$    

16 150131 Leland Residential Site 5,000.00       01125 6/3/2015 665.00              665.00$           4,335.00      
RLF - Task 6 01329 7/16/2015 1,988.75          2,653.75$        2,346.25      

01475 9/10/2015 1,825.00          4,478.75$        521.25         

17 150123
Traverse City Housing Commission 10200 E.
Carter Center, Traverse City, MI 8,500.00       01135 6/3/2015 3,493.75          3,493.75$        5,006.25      
RLF - Task 6 01325 7/15/2015 120.00              3,613.75$        4,886.25      

01951 2/8/2016 120.00              3,733.75$        4,766.25      

18 150232
Leland Residential Project - Cleanup
Planning/Characterization $51,883.75 01328 7/16/2015 6,083.75          6,083.75$        $45,800.00
RLF - Task 6 01482 9/10/2015 37,266.77        43,350.52$      $8,533.23

01559 10/8/2015 3,392.50          46,743.02$      $5,140.73
01708 11/12/2015 737.50              47,480.52$      $4,403.23
01738 12/3/2015 156.40              47,636.92$      $4,246.83
01902 1/12/2016 910.00              48,546.92$      $3,336.83
02036 2/12/2016 1,440.00          49,986.92$      $1,896.83
02076 3/7/2016 1,865.00          51,851.92$      $31.83

W.O. 18 Subtotal 51,851.92        $31.83

10% Subtotal 72,883.75     66,006.92        66,006.92$      6,876.83$    
Expenditures above this line funded with 10% Budget

19 150337 Former Leelanau County Govt. Complex $10,000.00 01711 11/12/2015 5,761.25          5,761.25$        $4,238.75
RLF - Task 5 Oversight 01741 12/3/2015 3,207.50          8,968.75$        $1,031.25
Community Relations/Implementation Plan, ABCA, 01901 1/12/2016 701.25              9,670.00$        $330.00
Conceptual Cleanup Costs 02035 2/12/2016 300.00              9,970.00$        $30.00

Subtotal $10,000.00 9,970.00          9,970.00$        $30.00

Totals 82,883.75$   75,976.92$      75,976.92$      6,906.83      

General Updates:

Envirologic

1. Budget Expended includes "Invoices for Consideration" amount.
2. There are no invoices for this month.

 Invoice # 
 Invoices for 

Consideration 
Budget1 

Expended

Budget 
Remaining

Task 
Completed 

 Invoice 
Date 

 Budget 
Estimate Site/Phase

Page 13 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 
 

TO:  TRUDY J. GALLA, AICP, DIRECTOR, LEELANAU COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

FROM: JEFF HAWKINS 

SUBJECT: 2014 EPA BROWNFIELD ASSESSMENT GRANT MONTHLY UPDATES AND INVOICES 

DATE: MAY 17, 2016 
This memorandum serves to provide information regarding invoices and updates that are being 
presented to the LCBRA for services rendered on various projects related to the 2014 EPA Brownfield 
Assessment Grants. 
 
Please find attached several items for your consideration: 
 
1. Community Outreach (W.O. #2H/P-14) 
 

Update: 
Envirologic has been actively moving forward with outreach activities including preparation for, set-
up and implementation of individual meetings with various local units of government and supporters 
of the grant. On April 19, 2016, Trudy Galla and Envirologic met with Sue Carpenter and several 
individuals from the Village of Empire to present information about the Assessment Grants and the 
LCBRA’s Brownfield Program. There was a great exchange of information with the group. On April 20, 
2016, Trudy Galla and Envirologic met with the Suttons Bay Township Supervisor to discuss the 
Assessment Grant and the LCBRA’s program. Also, on April 20, 2016, Trudy Galla and Envirologic met 
with the Elmwood Township Supervisor to discuss the grants and the Brownfield Program. 
 
On April 21, 2016, Envirologic and Trudy Galla held a conference call with Dr. Nikki Rothwell of the 
Northwest Michigan Horticultural Research Center regarding the grants and the LCBRA’s program. 
 
Envirologic continues to schedule additional outreach meetings. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
Invoice #02281 ($487.50) Hazardous 
Invoice #02282 ($487.50) Petroleum 

 
2. Courthouse Redevelopment Group, LLC (W.O. #3H/P-14) 
 

Update: 
Envirologic will be re-initiating the completion of a Phase I ESA and BEA for the new developer 
subject to direction by the County BOC and the LCBRA.  
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration this month. 
 

3. Leland Residential Site (W.O. #4H-14) 
 

Update: 
Based on the approved ABCA and the cleanup plan for the site, no additional activities are 
anticipated under this work order.  

 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration for this month. 
 

4. Former Leelanau County Govt Complex – Brownfield Plan and Act 381 Work Plan amendment 
(W.O. #6H-14) 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Page 14 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 2 of 2 

Update: 
The activities related to this work order are essentially complete. 

 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration. 
 

5. Two Peas, LLC - 206 N. St. Joseph St., Suttons Bay, MI  
(W.O. #7H-14)  
(W.O. #8H-14) 

 
Update: 
Envirologic conducted sub-slab sampling beneath the former dry cleaners building floor on February 
22 and 23, 2016. Lab results have indicated that we have exceedances above MDEQ Residential and 
Non-Residential Vapor Intrusion Screening levels. Due Care recommendations will likely include 
some form of vapor mitigation. The Phase I ESA and BEA are finalized but awaiting a signed BEA 
submittal from the developer. Envirologic will also obtain a signature from the developer for a Notice 
of Migration of Contamination which is necessary for due care compliance.  
 
EPA has approved a Sampling Plan for transmissivity testing and Envirologic has scheduled this work 
for May 18th/19th. The data from this testing will be used to engineer a sub-slab depressurization 
system. The developer shared with Envirologic that he had an asbestos survey done privately so this 
part of the Sampling Plan will not be conducted. The Documentation of Due Care report will be 
finalized and issued when the design is done. 
  

 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
#02283 ($1,736.25) Hazardous Grant 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
2014 EPA Petroleum Assessment Grant and Hazardous Substances Grant Monthly Budget Update

Budget and Cost Summary

5/17/16
Page 1 of 1

Project Project
Budget Budget Invoices for Task 

 Estimates  Estimates Consideration Hazardous Petroleum Hazardous Petroleum Completed
LCBRA Grant Work

File # Plan Task W/O Project Site/Phase  Hazardous  Petroleum 
Initial EPA Grant Award 200,000.00$            200,000.00$          
Envirologic Contract Amount 71,200.00$              71,200.00$            

Task #2 1H/P-14 140554 QAPP 1,000.00                  1,000.00                01018 4/15/2015 1,997.50$             998.75$                998.75$                -$                     -$                     X

Task #4 2H/P-14 140555 Community Outreach 3,000.00                  3,000.00                01092 5/14/2015 420.00$                210.00$                210.00$                2,790.00$            2,790.00$            
Total Budget from Grant Work Plan is $15,000. 01479 9/10/2015 385.00$                192.50$                192.50$                2,597.50$            2,597.50$            

01552 10/8/2015 490.00$                245.00$                245.00$                2,352.50$            2,352.50$            
01952 2/8/2016 140.00$                70.00$                  70.00$                  2,282.50$            2,282.50$            
02144 4/5/2016 825.00$                412.50$                412.50$                1,870.00$            1,870.00$            

02281* 5/12/2016 487.50$               487.50$               1,382.50$           
02282* 5/12/2016 487.50$               487.50$               1,382.50$           

Task #1 and 2 3H/P-14 150070 Courthouse Redevelopment Group, LLC
Phase I ESA and BEA 2,250.00                  2,250.00                01011 4/15/2015 835.50$                417.75$                417.75$                1,832.25$            1,832.25$            

01126 6/3/2015 347.50$                173.75$                173.75$                1,658.50$            1,658.50$            

Task 2 4H-14 150262 Leland Residential Project - Discreet Sampling 19,980.00                01478 9/10/2015 15,063.82$           15,063.82$           -$                      4,916.18$            

Task 3 5H/P-14 150341 GTRAC - BFPlan Review; Reimbursement Agreement 625.00                     625.00                   01551 10/8/2015 490.00$                245.00$                245.00$                380.00$               380.00$               
01710 11/12/015 350.00$                175.00$                175.00$                205.00$               205.00$               
01740 12/3/2015 385.00$                192.50$                192.50$                -$                     -$                     X

Task 3 6H-14 150374 Fmr. Leelanau County Govt Complex
Brownfield Plan Amendment and Act 381 Work Plan Amendment 6,000.00                  -                        01739 12/3/2015 525.00$                525.00$                -$                      5,475.00$            -$                     

01899 1/12/2016 140.00$                140.00$                -$                      5,335.00$            -$                     
01954 2/8/2016 3,860.00$             3,860.00$             -$                      1,475.00$            -$                     
02075 3/7/2016 1,295.00$             1,295.00$             -$                      180.00$               -$                    

Task #1 and 2 7H-14 150449 Two Peas, LLC - 206 N. St. Joseph St., Suttons Bay, MI $29,900 -                        01900 1/12/2016 127.50$                127.50$                -$                      29,772.50$          -$                     
01950 2/8/2016 3,470.75$             3,470.75$             -$                      26,301.75$          -$                     
02079 3/8/2016 9,581.04$             9,581.04$             -$                      16,720.71$          -$                     
02146 4/5/2016 1,190.00$             1,190.00$             -$                      15,530.71$          -$                     

02283* 5/12/2016 1,736.25$            1,736.25$            -$                     13,794.46$         -$                    

Task #3 8H-14 Two Peas, LLC - 206 N. St. Joseph St., Suttons Bay, MI $8,500 -$                      -$                      -$                      8,500.00$            
Sub-Slab System Engineering and Design

Subtotal 71,255.00                6,875.00                

Totals 71,255.00$              6,875.00$              44,629.86$           40,809.61$           3,820.25$             30,431.64$          3,041.00$            

Budgeted Grant Funds for Envirologic Activities 71,255.00$              6,875.00$              

Envirologic Contract Budget Remaining Subtotal* (55.00)$                    64,325.00$            
*Adjust budget against remaining Community Outreach Budgets

Budgets Returned from Under Budget Projects

QAPP 1.25$                       1.25$                     

GTRAC - BFPlan Review; Reimbursement Agreement 12.50$                     12.50$                   

Subtotal Under Budget Projects 13.75$                     13.75$                   

Total Envirologic Contract Budget Remaining (41.25)$                    64,338.75$            

* Pending approval by LCBRA

Phase I, II ESA and BEA, Due Care Plan, Brownfield Plan and Act 381 Work 
Plan

Number

Envirologic

Project Budget Expended Project Budget Remaining

Invoice Date Invoice Total

Page 16 of 27 LCBRA Packet



 
 

 

TO:  TRUDY J. GALLA, AICP, DIRECTOR, LEELANAU COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

FROM: JEFF HAWKINS 

SUBJECT: GENERAL CONSULTING MONTHLY UPDATES AND INVOICES 

DATE: MAY 17, 2016 
This memorandum serves to provide information regarding invoices and updates that are being 
presented to the LCBRA for services rendered on various projects related to General Environmental 
Consulting activities. 
 
Please find attached several items for your consideration: 
 

 
1. General Services (W.O. #15) 

 
Update: 
There were no activities this month. 
 
Project Invoices for Consideration: 
There are no invoices for consideration this month. 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 17 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
General Environmental Consulting Services

Monthly Project Update

Budget and Cost Summary

5/17/16
Page 1 of 1

LCBRA
File # W/O Project

15 140291 General Services 4,500.00       00201 8/5/2014 210.00$            210.00$            
00355 9/18/2014 770.00              980.00$            3,520.00      
00453 10/15/2014 350.00              1,330.00$         3,170.00      
00481 11/4/2014 840.00              2,170.00$         2,330.00      
01094 5/15/2015 280.00              2,450.00$         2,050.00      
01128 6/3/2015 70.00                2,520.00$         1,980.00      
01480 9/10/2015 700.00              3,220.00$         1,280.00      
01736 12/3/2015 140.00              3,360.00$         1,140.00      
02069 3/7/2016 140.00              3,500.00$         1,000.00      

Totals 4,500.00$     3,500.00$         3,500.00$         1,140.00      

General Updates:

Envirologic

1. Budget Expended includes "Invoices for Consideration" amount.
2. There are no invoices for this month.

 Invoice # 
 Invoices for 

Consideration 
Budget1 

Expended

Budget 
Remaining

Task 
Completed 

 Invoice 
Date 

 Budget 
Estimate Site/Phase

Page 18 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 19 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 20 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 21 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 22 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 23 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 24 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 25 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 26 of 27 LCBRA Packet



Page 27 of 27 LCBRA Packet


	2016-05-03 LCBRA Assessment Monthly Report.pdf
	2016-05-03 LCBRA Assessment Monthly Report
	AKT LCBRA 2014 EPA Assessment Grant MSTR Work Order Budget Summary 5-3-16

	ETI-LCBRA Monthly RLF Loan Project and Cost Summary 5-17-16.pdf
	Summary - RLF Loan Budgets
	Summary - 10% - Oversite Budget

	ETI-LCBRA 2014 EPA Grant Monthly Budget and Cost Summary 5-17-16.pdf
	Summary

	ETI-LCBRA Monthly General Enviro Consulting Services Project and Cost Summary 5-17-16.pdf
	Summary




